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Sealed Bid # 12-5637 

CCT Mobility Center (Paratransit Facility) 
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The following addendum hereby amends and/or modifies the Proposal Documents and 
specifications as originally issued for this project.  All proposers are subject to the provisions of this Addendum. 
 

Include this original form inside your proposal package. 
Proposers shall acknowledge receipt of this addendum. 

 
This Addendum consists of: 
 

• Questions submitted in writing 
• Minutes of the February 7, 2012 Pre-Bid Meeting 
• Substitution Requests 
• Project Manual Clarifications 
• Revised Bid Form 
• Drawing Clarifications 
• Pre-Bid meeting Attendee List 
• Attachments 
 

All bids must be received before 12:00 (noon) by the Bid Opening date.  Bids shall be delivered to Cobb County 
Purchasing Department, 1772 County Services Parkway, Marietta, GA  30008.   
 
Electronic / faxed bid response will not be considered. 
 
 
I acknowledge that I have received Addendum No. 1 
 

Sealed Bid # 12-5637 
CCT Mobility Center (Paratransit Facility) 

 
 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
               
Signature                            Date Sent to Purchasing 

____ 

 

Please Print Name 
                                                             ______ 

 
 

Please sign, date, and return this form ONLY to: 
Cobb County Purchasing Department 

Fax #: 770-528-1154 
E-Mail: purchasing@cobbcounty.org 

 
Please note: The deadline for questions is: February 14, 2012 by 5:00 pm 

Any questions received after this deadline will not be considered. 
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Niles Bolton Associates 
 

Architecture     ■    Urban Design     ■    Interiors     ■     Landscape Architecture 
 

3060 Peachtree Road, N.W. 
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Atlanta, Georgia 30305 
404.365.7600 
FAX   404.365.7610 
 
Email  nba@nilesbolton.com 

Alexandria,  
Virginia 
703.836.0915 
FAX  703.684.3653 
 
San Jose,  
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408.279.5476 
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CCT ADDENDUM NO. 1 
NBA Project No. 110044.00 
February 16, 2012 

 
 
 
 
A. RESPONSE TO BIDDERS’ QUESTIONS 

 
Q.1 Please clarify fluid types to be present in new maintenance area.  Specification 

Section 11-11-19-4, item 2.01 C 1a through 1k shows a total of (1) chassis grease, 
(1) engine coolant, (7) oils, (1) water and (1) windshield washer solvent.  Drawing 
number P2.4 shows only (1) chassis grease, (1) engine coolant and (3) oils 
originating from the existing facility.  In addition, drawing P2.4 shows an 
additional oil product (ATF 2) in new addition that has no origination point. 

 
A.1 Specification Section 11 11 19, 2.01 describes reels and accessories for many 

commodities.  The commodities that are listed in Specification Section 2.02 and 
2.03 are the ones that are used in this project.  These are CG, ATF1, ATF2, EC, 
EO1, and EO2.  The ATF2 reel will be a spare. 

 
Q.2 Please clarify number of (CA) Compressed Air down to Reels and Air Drops 

shown on Drawing P2.4.  Plumbing Key Notes show Air to Reels identified as 
Number 2.  This shows 13 locations in New Addition.  There are also 4 
unidentified hose reels shown next to grease reels identified as Number 8 on the 
drawing. 

 
A.2 1. The plumbing drawing note 8 identifies these reels as chassis grease. 
 2. There are no compressed air reels. 

3. The compressed air drops are correct as shown on Sheet P2.4, with the 
following modification:  Sheet P2.4 Note B calls for “COMPRESSED 
AIR DROP TO EQUIPMENT”.   There is no equipment specified at these 
locations.  At each of these locations the General Contractor shall supply a 
wall mounted filter, regulator, lubricator with piping and devices as 
described in Specification Section 13 60 00, 2.02, B, 5 and 6. 

 
Q.3 For doors 01A and 01B in room 01 on drawing A8.00, what are their rough 

openings (RO)? 
 
A.3  As indicated in the contract documents. 
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Q.4 What is the existing Fire Alarm system to be tied to? 
 
A.4 Cobb County contracts with Alliance Fire Protection, Inc. for monitoring of the 

fire alarm system.  The main panel is located in Suite 114 (1 door down from our 
entrance).  The expectation is that the Mobility Center panel will be connected to 
main panel in Suite 114.  The main panel model no. is EST 2 and was made by 
Edwards System Technology.  

 
Q.5 To verify, the streetscape lights are by the utility company. 
 
A.5 Provide lighting per contract documents unless otherwise noted by Owner. 
 
Q.6 Spec Sections 002113 and 001113 state that the project is to have a duration of 

280 days from the Notice to Proceed.  However, Bid proposal form 004113 
Section 3 states 320 days from NTP.  Which is correct? 

 
A.6 Sections 002113 and 001113 are correct.  Revise Specification Section 00 41 13 

Bid Proposal Form, Article 3, Time of Completion to read as follows: 
  
 Bidder hereby agrees to commence actual physical work on the site with an 

adequate force and equipment within ten (10) days of a date to be specified in a 
written order of Owner’s (Notice to Proceed), to achieve Substantial Completion 
of the Work within two hundred eighty (280) calendar days, and to achieve Final 
Completion of the Work within forty-five (45) calendar days after the date of 
Substantial Completion. 

 
Q.7 Spec Section 26 05 19 2.1C lists MC Cable as an approved multi conductor cable.  

It is not stated as applicable in the execution sections of the specs.  IT states EMT 
Conduit ¾” minimum with CU Conductors must be used.  Is MC Cable an 
acceptable method for branch circuit wiring? 

 
A.7 No 
 
Q.8 Detail 4 Page E6.0 shows a flexible Fixture whip.  Are standard 6’ fixture whips 

acceptable as connections between light fixtures and junction boxes? 
 
A.8 Contractor shall coordinate exact length with actual field conditions. 
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Q.9 Sheet E2.0 Shows a Type “J” Fixture in the Men’s and Women’s restrooms, there 

is no fixture shown for this designation on the fixture schedule.  Please provide a 
fixture type or allowance amount to be carried. 

 
A.9 Provide attached “J” type fixture or equivalent. (See attached Type “J” fixture cut 

sheet). 
 
Q10. The fixture schedule on Sheet E2.0 is based upon a single manufacturer, were 

alternate fixtures approved or will they be allowed? 
 
A.10 Alternate lighting fixtures can be approved as long as they meet or exceed the 

performance of the specified fixtures and the Request for Substitution is 
submitted in accordance with Specification Section 01 25 00 Substitution 
Procedures. 

 
Q11. Sheet E7.0 shows a (2) headed Type P1 fixture and also lists a P2 fixture that is 

not listed on the fixture schedule.  Please clarify. 
 
A11. P2 type fixture is equivalent to (2) headed P1 type fixture. 
 
Q12. In the existing Maintenance Building Switchboard MSA is being utilized to feed 

Panel 1L22 in the new addition for the Maintenance Building.  Who is the 
manufacturer of this switchgear and what is the model of the gear? 

 
A.12 There is a combination of Cutler-Hammer, Square D, and GE electrical 

equipment on site.  Per photograph, the existing MSA switchboard appears to be 
GE Spectra Series.  (See attached existing MSA switchboard photograph). 

 
Q.13 The Fire Alarm Spec lists a Game-well/Honeywell system as the approved 

manufacturer.  Since the system will tie between the main building and the 
maintenance building which is existing, is there a company that services this 
system already that should be contacted for pricing? 

 
A.13 No. 
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Q.14 There does not appear from any of the “Fire Protection” drawings that there is any 

requirement except sprinklers.  If the sprinkler system water flow and tamper 
sensors need to be monitored, we can easily provide a quote for that.  If there is a 
requirement for an Electronic Fire Alarm System (with control panel, pull 
stations, horn/strobes, etc.) please ask the Architect if it is intended to be a 
“design-build” or should I wait to receive specifications? 

 
A.14 Fire alarm system and fire protection are included in contract drawings and 

specifications.  Fire alarm system is in the electrical contractor’s scope of work.  
See E drawings and Divisions 26 and 28 Specifications for additional information 
on fire alarm system.  See FP drawings and Division 21 Specifications for 
additional information on fire protection. 

 
Q.15 Ref. details 2/A5.08 and 3/A6.03 – Due to fabrication, installation and material 

limitations we recommend adding an additional horizontal joint +/- 0’-9” (far 
enough for an attachment point) down from the top of skyward facing plane. 

 
A.15 At the high roof component above the clerestory and porte cochere, add a 

continuous horizontal joint in the aluminum composite panels fascia 
approximately 9” below the top of the parapet.  On the east and west sides, the 
joint will slope parallel to the slope of the parapet.  Coordinate exact location of 
joint with Architect.  

 
Q.16 Ref. details 2/A5.08 and 3/A6.03 – Due to fabrication, installation and material 

limitations we recommend adding an additional horizontal joint +/- 0’-4” in to the 
soffit plane. 

 
A.16 At the high roof component above the porte cochere, add a continuous horizontal 

joint in the aluminum composite panels soffit approximately 4” in from the 
outside edge of the soffit (south, east, and west sides).  Coordinate exact location 
of joint with Architect. 

 
Q.17 Please note that there are multiple panels currently design that exceed material 

limitations.  Please adjust the panel joint layout by not exceeding 60” in more 
than one direction. 

 
A.17 Panel joints will be adjusted by the Architect so as to not exceed 60” in more than 

one direction. 
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Q.18 Please note that the color selected for the ACM panels at the Driver’s Entrance 

would be a custom color.  This selection has significant affects to the cost of this 
project.  When ordering a custom color there is a 2,500 SF minimum and a SF 
price that would be 2 – 3 times the cost of a standard color. 
a. To achieve a “Charcoal” look we recommend selected Reynolbond’s 

Pewter which is a standard 3-coat color. 
 
A.18 a. Change the color of the aluminum composite panel above door surround            

                                    for door 30B to “MP-1” in lieu of “Match SF-1 Charcoal Color”.  All 
                                    aluminum composite panel color called out to be MP-2, PPG #17036 to  
                                    remain unchanged. 

 
Q.19 Ref. specifications 074100, Part 2.01 C – Please strike RB240 (6mm) = 0.236” 

which leads to confusion on which material thickness is required. 
 
A.19 Delete “RB240 (6 mm) = 0.236” from Specification Section 07 41 00, Article 

2.01 C. 
 
Q.20 Ref. specifications 074100, Part 2.01 D – Please strike RB240 (6mm) = 1.49 

lbs/sft which leads to confusion on which material thickness is required. 
 
A.20 Delete “RB240 (6mm) = 1.49 lbs/sft” from Specification Section 07 41 00, 

Article 2.01 D. 
 
Q.21 Ref. specifications 074100, Part 2.02 E – Please strike descriptions 2 and 3 these 

conflicting attachment systems to your desired and selected attachment system. 
 
A.21 Delete E.2 and E.3 from Specification Section 07 41 00, Article 2.02 E. 
 
Q.22 It appears that our attachment system was used as the Basis of Design for the 

drawings.  Would it be possible to list us at the Basis of Design Fabricator in the 
specifications. 

 
A.22  Miller Clapperton is approved as a fabricator for the aluminum composite panels. 
 
Q. 23 Where in the specs are the information on data cabling with accepted 

manufacturer? 
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A.23 Electrical drawings indicate location of tele/data outlets.  The actual tele/data 

equipment and cables are provided by others. 
 
Q.24 Are there any Access Control in this project?  Which drawings are they on? 
 
A.24 Card readers will be provided and installed by the Owner’s separate contractor.  

Providing power and raceways for card readers and door position switches is 
included in the contract documents.  Cooperate fully with the Owner’s separate 
contractor so work on that contract may be carried out smoothly, without 
interfering or delaying work under this contract with work performed under 
separate contract. 

 
Q.25 Where are the specs for the Access Control? 
 
A.25 See above response. 

B. SUBSTITUTION REQUESTS 
• By including an approved substitution in their bid, the General Contractor 

agrees to all conditions set forth in Specification Section 01 25 00 – 
Substitution Procedures. 

• Substitution approval does not represent Submittal approval.  The 
submittal process must still be followed for any approved substitution 
requests. 

 
Request 1 From Norton Industries (Mark Spitz, 216-228-6650) requesting approval 

of NLP Linear Wood Plank for Armstrong World Industries, Inc. in 
Specification Section 09 54 29 Linear Wood Panel Ceilings. 

 
Response 1 Requested Approved. 
 
Request 2 From Insulation Solutions, Inc. (Jason Andrew, 866-698-6562) requesting 

approval of Viper VaporCheck II, 10-mil “Class C” in Specification 
Section 03 30 00, Cast-In-Place Concrete, Article 2.07 Vapor Retarders. 

 
Response 2 Request Approved. 
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Request 3 From Georgia Air Associates (Kirk Douglas, 687-736-5100) requesting 

approval of: 
a. Nailor Model 1370 Backdraft Dampers in Specification Section 23 

33 00, Air Duct Accessories, Article 2.2, Backdraft and Pressure 
Relief Dampers. 

b. Atco UPC #039 Flexible Ductwork in Specification Section 23 33 
00, Air Duct Accessories, Article 2.13, Flexible Ducts. 

c. Raywall 5100 Series and 3000 Series in Specification Section 23 
82 39, Unit Heaters, Article 2.1, Wall and Ceiling Heaters. 

 
Response 3 Request for a, b, and c approved.  
 
Request 4 From Heavy Duty Lift and Equipment, Inc. (Matt Lennemann, 410-643-

9001) requesting approval of: 
a. Stertil Koni:  Eco 60-17 in  Specification Section 14 45 00, 

Vehicle Lifts, Article 2.01, Lift, Axel, Adjustable, 2 Post, Modular, 
60,000 pounds. 

b. Stertil Koni Sky 200-9 in Specification Section 14 45 00, Vehicle 
Lifts, Article 2.02, Lift, Drive-On, Parallelogram, 36,000 lb. 
capacity, 28 ft. 

 
Response 4 The requests do not meet the requirements of the specifications.  The 

request for substitution is not approved. 
 
Request 5 From Georgia Masonry Supply (Kevin Torok, 770-963-5888) requesting 

approval of Custom Cast Stone in Specification Section 04 73 13 Calcium 
Silicate Masonry Units. 

 
Response 5 The standard color range from Custom Cast Stone does not provide a 

match close enough to the specified color or texture to be an acceptable 
complement to the exterior material palette.  This request for substitution 
is not approved. 

 
Request 6 From Harvey Industries, Inc. (Keith Morris, 866-633-0122) requesting 

approval of: 
a. Harvey Industries, Inc. RHR-6R-MHR-33 motorized exhaust hose 

reel in Specification Section 11 96 00 Shop Equipment, Article 
2.05 Reel Vehicle Exhaust, Motor Operated, with 6” Hose. 

b. Harvey Industries, Inc. BD-11 Belt Drive Exhaust Blower for 
Performance and Sizing Information taken from Fan Schedule. 
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Response 6 Request a. is approved.  Regarding Request b., Harvey Industries is 
approved as a manufacturer.  However, compliance relative to any model 
numbers cannot be confirmed at this time based on the information 
submitted. 

 
C. PROJECT MANUAL CLARIFICATIONS 
 
Section 00 41 13 – Bid Proposal 
 
1. Delete current Bid Proposal Form and replace with attached Bid Proposal Form 

that includes an allowance for the Building Department and Water and Sewer 
Permit fees.  The attached Bid Proposal Form also corrects paragraph 3, Time of 
Completion. 

 
Section 01 21 00 – Allowances 
 
1. Add the attached new Section 01 21 00 Allowances to the body of the 

specifications and to the Table of Contents. 
 

Section 07 41 00 – Aluminum Composite Material Building Panels (ACMBP) 
 
1. Part 2 – Products, Article 2.01 F.  Panel Finishes:  Add the following “Custom 

color PPG #17036 as indicated on the Drawings”. 
 
Section 10 51 13 – Metal Lockers 
 
1. Article 2.03, Paragraph M:  revise locker depth to 12 inches in lieu of 22 inches. 
 
Section 11 00 00 – Equipment Schedule 

1. #35601 Tank, parts cleaning solvent, medium –Specification Section 11 00 00 
incorrectly lists this item as appearing in Specification Section 11 96 00. This is 
an existing piece of equipment and does not have a specification section. 

 
Section 11 96 00 – Shop Equipment 
 
1. #2205 Drill press, variable speed, 15” -Specification Section 11 96 00, 2.02, D 

states, “Utilities Available: 440 VAC, 3 Hp.”  This should be replaced by, 
“Utilities Available: 115 VAC, 1 phase, 3 HP.” 
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Section 14 45 00 – Vehicle Lifts 
 
1. #5650- AA Lift axle, adj. 2 post, modular, 60,000 lb –Specification Section 14 45 

00, 2.01, F states, “Utilities Available: Electric 460 VAC, 3 phase, 12.5 HP.” This 
should be replaced by, “Utilities Available: 208 VAC, 1 phase, 10.5 HP.” 

 
2. #5701-AA Lift, drive-on, parallelogram, 36,000 lb, 28 ft. -  Specification Section 

14 45 00, 2.02, G states, “Utilities Available: Electric 460 VAC, 3 phase, 10 HP.” 
This should be replaced by, “Utilities Available: 208 VAC, 1 phase, 10 HP.” 

 
Section 28 31 11 – Digital, Addressable Fire-Alarm System 
 
1. Part 2 – Products, Article 2.1A Manufacturers, add Edwards System Technology 

as an approved manufacturer. 
 
Table of Contents, TOC – 5 
 
1. Specification Section 28 31 11 Digital, Addressable Fire-Alarm System should be 

listed under Division 28 – Electronic Safety and Security in lieu of Division 26 – 
Electrical. 

 
D. DRAWING CLARIFICATIONS 

 
1. Sheet P2.4 Calls out fixtures P12 and P13 as “TO BE SUPPLIED BY THE 

EQUIPMENT DESIGNER.”  These fixtures appear in the Plumbing Fixture 
Schedule and should be supplied by the General Contractor. 

 
2. Sheet P2.4 Note B calls for “COMPRESSED AIR DROP TO EQUIPMENT. 

”There is no equipment specified at these locations.  At each of these locations the 
General Contractor shall supply a wall mounted filter, regulator, lubricator with 
piping and devices as described in Specification Section 13 60 00, 2.02, B, 5 and 
6. 

 
E. ATTACHMENTS 
 
1. Minutes of the February 7, 2012 Pre-Bid Meeting 
2. United Consulting Report of Geotechnical Explorations dated December 27, 2010 
3. What is the Buy American Act? 
4. Type “J” Fixture Catalogue Cut 
5. Existing MSA Switchboard Photograph  
6. Specification Section 00 41 13 – Bid Proposal Form. 
7. Specification Section 01 21 00 – Allowances. 
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Addendum 1 
CCT Mobility Center Paratransit Facility 

Seal Bid 12-5637 
 

Minutes of the February 7, 2012 Pre-Bid Meeting 
 
A pre-bid meeting was conducted on February 7, 2012 at the Cobb County Purchasing 
Department. 
 
In Attendance: 
 
John Flood (Cobb County Purchasing) Lester Love (Niles Bolton Associates) 
David A. Jackson (Cobb County Transit) David M. McDowell (Cobb County Property Mgmt. 
Tamie McKenzie (Cobb County Transit) March Johnson (MultiPlex, LLC) 
Marcia Rose (Cobb County Transit) Charlie Wilson (Hogan Construction Group) 
Mike Tomlin (Hogan Construction Group) Gerry Kasslanos (Southcore Construction) 
Anotin Pruitt (JM Wilkerson Construction) Trevor Sas (CRS Building Corporation) 
D.J. Schell (Albion Scaccia Enterprises) Ennis Mobley (Rotary Lift) 
Jeff Casey (Reliable Hydraulics) Steve McTighe (Catamount Construction) 
Chad Thames (Reeves Contracting Co.) Ed McNear (Excel Electric Technologies) 
Daryl Davis (Talbot Construction) Carmon White (Mooney Construction, Inc.) 
Cyndi Wallace (Earth 1st) Jeff Hacknoy (Hohy Commercial) 
Kecia Tomlin (Classic Plains Construction)  
 
 
John Flood, Purchasing Technician of the Purchasing Department, welcomed everyone 
and circulated the sign-in sheet.  He mentioned that this is Seal Bid 12-5637 CCT 
Mobility Center Paratransit Facility.  John introduced Tami McKenzie (Cobb County 
DOT/CCT), David McDowell (Cobb County Property Management), Lester Love (Niles 
Bolton Associates) and David Jackson (Cobb County DOT/CCT). 
 
John said the deadline for receiving bids is February 23 before 12 Noon and late bids will 
not be accepted.  The clock will be governed by the clock in the Purchasing lobby, which 
will be the official timekeeper.  Bids will open at 2:00 p.m. the same day at the 
Purchasing Department located at 1772 County Services Parkway, Marietta, Georgia 
upstairs on the 2nd floor in the Bid Room.  
 
This project requires a bid bond and the GA Security and Immigration Act Affidavit 
Form must be submitted with the bid.  The vendor must sign and have that form 
notarized.  Please submit an original and two (2) copies with the original clearly marked 
so it can be kept separate from the copies.  Please mark all packages with company name 
and bid number.  If more than one box is used to submit the bid, please clearly mark the 
originals and place them in Box #1 if possible. 
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The cutoff date for questions is February 14 at 5:00 p.m.  Question can be submitted to 
the Purchasing Department via fax at 770-528-1154 or email to 
purchasing@cobbcounty.org.  This will be a televised bid opening and will be available 
on TV-23 or you can watch it on the Cobb County website by clicking on the live stream.  
You are also welcome to view the bid live. 
 
Tami addressed DBE and federal requirements.  She referenced the back of the proposal 
where there is a combination of certifications (all federal forms) required to be submitted 
with the bids.  Tami emphasized that there should be no blank certifications that are not 
addressed.   All certifications must be signed regardless of whether they are not 
applicable, otherwise the bid will be considered unresponsive.  David Jackson cautioned 
to pay attention to this so the bid will not be unresponsive. 
 
David Jackson said the project consists of construction of a 10,560 square foot single-
story Administrative and Operations Building with an addition of a 6,171 square foot 
single-story Maintenance Building.  Upon completion of this meeting, the opportunity 
will be provided to walk the site. The civil work will included 79 spaces for paratransit 
vehicles, parking for 109 employee vehicles, and all other work shown on the project 
drawings and described in project manual.   
 
David Jackson pointed out that it will be necessary to continue parking CCT and Cobb 
County Senior Service vehicles on a portion of the construction site.  It is the 
Contractor’s responsibility to coordinate the sequencing of those vehicles with him and 
David McDowell so there are no surprises. They will work to accommodate the 
Contractor, as other spaces are available on a short-term basis to move the vehicles. It is 
not an impossible challenge, just a matter of coordination. 
 
The Notice of Intent (NOI) as required on the project is already in place, as far as 
approval, but a NOI must be given when it is time.  Be very aware of all that needs to be 
submitted with the bid proposal.  The bid itself must be put on the Bid Proposal Form 
found in the Project Manual as well as other forms, which is pretty easy to follow. The 
site is fronted by S. Marietta Parkway, Commerce Park Drive and also a lesser amount 
Fairground Road.  There are public utilities all around that area and across the site, 
reflected on the plans.  It is the Contractor’s responsibility to coordinate any relocation as 
shown on the plans and any notification to the various utilities. 
 
The County has purchased and owns all of these properties well in advance of this 
project; therefore there will be no delay in waiting for right of way.  The project site is 
located within the City of Marietta limits and therefore subject to their rules and 
regulations.  However, do not be discouraged because the City of Marietta works well 
with CCT.  CCT has already obtained or is close to obtaining majority of the plan 
approvals, so it is just a matter of pulling a Building Permit with the City. 
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A City of Marietta Sidewalk Project may impact the CCT Mobility Center Project along 
the S. Marietta Parkway frontage where there is an enhanced sidewalk multi-use trail that 
goes by various names.  If their project is ahead of ours, CCT will let them build the 
sidewalk and negotiate perhaps a deduction from the CCT Mobility Center contract.  If 
the worst case scenario occurs that their project does not start before or happen at all, the 
Contractor will build the sidewalk as shown in the plan.  Again, there will be a need for 
coordination with the City of Marietta.   
 
John mentioned that there are alternates so make sure you look at Specs Section 012300.  
Regarding Substitution Requests, there is Specs Section 012500 that outlines the 
procedure and a form to complete if there is any substitution request.  In case you 
question how to put your profit and do your estimating, Cobb County believes there is 
adequate funding to build this entire facility including the add alternates. 
 
David Jackson said, understanding that there is a need to coordinate the maintenance of 
the parking of CCT’s vehicles, are there any questions after reviewing the plans or are 
there any concerns about this occurring. There were no responses. David Jackson asked if 
those who attempted to download the documents were successful and able to look at 
them.  Again, there were no responses. He opened the floor for questions. 
 
Question 1: What is the anticipated start date? 
 
Answer 1: The anticipated start date is the end of March. Cobb County is able to get 

to the Board of Commissioners (BOC) for approval at the March 13 
Agenda, provided the bids are reviewed and the apparent lowest bidder is 
a good bid.  CCT will move forward with getting contracts to the bidder to 
sign in anticipation of the Board approving it.  As soon as it is approved 
on March 13 the contracts will be taking to the Board for signatures so the 
contract can start by the end of March.  The Contractor will have 280 
consecutive calendar days. The project is expected to be substantially 
completion by the end of December and an additional 45 days for final 
completion by the end of February 

 
Question 2:  With respect to the specifications, if a particular item that is specified 

has some technological improvements (i.e. a part number or two has 
changed or something) do we follow the same protocol for a 
substitution or do we say that part number is not available and has 
been changed to so and so? 

 
Answer 2: If there is a specific item, it can be submitted as a question. 
 
Question 3: Is there a RFI Form within the packet or is it just in a body letter? 
 
Answer 3: There is no specific format, just email your questions. 
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Question 4: Will today attendees also be listed on the website? 
 
Answer 4: Addendum #1 will be issued and will include the sign-in list.  The minutes 

for this meeting will be sent to all plan holders in record, which means 
those who signed in and anyone else who have been notified.  The minutes 
will also be posted at www.cobbcounty.ga.gov on the Bidding Opportunity 
Section under where the initial solicitation was found. 

 
Question 5: Do you anticipate just one addendum coming out after the due date or 

will there be a couple out there? 
 
Answer 5: The amount of addendums depends on the amount of questions we 

received and we can answer. 
 
Question 6: Is there an estimated budget? 
 
Answer 6: The estimated budget for this project is about five million dollars 

($5,000.000). 
 
Question 7: Are there liquidated damages? 
 
Answer 7: Yes, there will be liquidated damage of $200 per day from substantial 

completion, $100 per day past final completion and after a certain date 
$300 per day as described in the Construction Manual. 

 
Question 8: Is the five million dollars ($5,000,000) construction cost or overall 

cost? 
 
Answer 8: It is the project as presented on the plans in the Project Manual. 
 
Question 9: The front-end document indicates that all fees (sewer impact, water 

impact, etc.) are to be paid by the General Contractors.  Does that 
mean that the Building Department Fees are paid to the City of 
Marietta? 

 
Answer 9: Yes. 
 
Question 10: From experiences in the past, when you call other municipalities and 

departments you sometimes get amounts that don’t always match 
what you end up getting later on in the project.  Has Cobb entertained 
maybe just a Permit Allowance or a Impact Fee Allowance or 
something where you can draw from that amount in lieu of 15 
Contractors calling all these departments and asking them for prices 
so there is a level playing field? 
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Answer 10: We will certainly consider it.  The City of Marietta has reviewed, basically 
approved and is aware of the plans; therefore, when a phone call is made 
they have an idea of the project and what permits are required. 

 
Question 11: Who is the Water Department? 
 
Answer 11: Marietta Power and Water and they also have the plans. 
 
Question 12: The front-end document referenced a Buy America Form but there 

aren’t a lot of details that tells what is involved.  Is there any 
information you can provide? 

 
Answer 12: Buy America requires that Fifty-one (51) percentage or better of the 

components used on the project must be domestically produced.  Specific 
Information regarding this will be sent with Addendum #1. 

 
Question 13: Is compliance with Buy America proven in the Bid Submittal Process 

or how does that work? 
 
Answer 13: The Contractor certifies that they will comply, but must provide proof of 

the items purchased that are manufactured in America during the 
construction process. 

 
Question 14: Is Buy America tied to federal funds? 
 
Answer 14: Yes. 
 
Question 15: The front-end document referenced 305 Qualification Contractor’s 

Statement and a Current Review Financial Statement.  Is that 
necessary or can the lowest bidder provide them afterwards so their 
Financial Statement will not be a public record? 

 
Answer 15: If they are required in the specs, you must provide them with the bid. 
 
Question 16: Will those documents remain confidential? 
 
Answer 16: No.  Once they are received by the County, they become County property 

and are subject to the Open Records Act. 
 
Question 17: What is the bid due date? 
 
Answer 17: February 23 before 12 Noon. 
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Question 18: Is the Pre-Bid mandatory? 
 
Answer 18: No, the Pre-Bid is not mandatory.  There is federal disallowance for that. 
 
 
Meeting Adjourned. 













































































What is the Buy American Act? 

The Buy American Act (Buy American) requires that all iron, steel, and manufactured 
goods used in any project funded wholly or partially by the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act involving a governmental entity, be produced in the United States. 

Section 1605 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) states “None of 
the funds appropriated or otherwise made available by this Act may be used for a project 
for the construction, alteration, maintenance, or repair of a public building or public work 
unless all of the iron, steel, and manufactured goods used in the project are produced in 
the United States”. 

What are Buy American requirements? 

• Requires all iron, steel, and manufactured goods that are incorporated into a public 
building or public work be produced in the U.S. 

• Does not require individual components and raw materials that comprise a 
manufactured good originate in the U.S. Only the final manufactured product, which will 
be incorporated into the public building or public work, must be assembled or 
manufactured into its final form in the United States. 

• Does not require machinery and tools used by project laborers be produced in the U.S. 

• Requires the subgrantee retain adequate records documenting their compliance with 
Buy American. 

To meet Buy America requirements: 

the cost of components produced in the U.S. must be more than 60% of the cost of 
all components (detailed rules on calculating the cost of a component as well as 
examples of components may be found in 49 CFR 661.11); and final assembly 
must occur in the U.S. In a "Dear Colleague" letter dated 18 March 1997, 
available on its website, the FTA defines "final assembly" of railcars and busses. 

The FTA realizes that U.S. suppliers are not capable of fulfilling all manufacturing needs 
and will grant waivers to allow the use of foreign materials. Depending on the type of 
waiver sought, waivers must be requested by the grantee, the prime contractor, or 
suppliers and should be sought early in the bidding process. Waivers may be granted on 
one of the following grounds: 

 use of U.S. materials would be inconsistent with the public interest; or materials 
are not produced in the U.S. in sufficient and reasonably available quantities of a 
satisfactory quality; or U.S. materials cost significantly more (i.e. 25%) than 
foreign products. 

General waivers exist for some products, e.g. microprocessors and software. 
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                                                                    SECTION 00 41 13 
 
 BID PROPOSAL FORM 
 
 
DATE:                           BIDDER'S NAME AND ADDRESS 
 
THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS           _______________________________________     
 OF COBB COUNTY GEORGIA             
C/O THE OFFICES OF THE                _______________________________________ 
COBB COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT 
1772 COUNTY SERVICES PARKWAY        _______________________________________ 
MARIETTA, GEORGIA 30008  
   
Gentlemen: 
 
1. BASE BID: 
 

Pursuant to and in compliance with the Advertisement for Bids and the proposed Contract 
Documents relating to the construction of: 
 
 
PROJECT NAME: Cobb County, Department of Transportation, Paratransit Facility 

 BID NUMBER:  
 
 

including Addenda             , the undersigned, having become thoroughly familiar with terms and 
conditions of the proposed Contract Documents and with local conditions affecting the 
performance, progress and cost of the work that is to be completed and having fully inspected the 
site in all particulars, hereby proposes and agrees to fully perform the work within the time stated 
and in accordance with the Contract Documents including furnishing any and all services, labor, 
materials, and equipment and to do all the work required to construct and complete said work in 
accordance with the Contract Documents for the following sum:  

 
  Dollars 

 
($     ) including Allowances listed in Section 01 21 00 
Allowances which sum is hereinafter called the “Base Bid”. 

 
2. ALTERNATES:  
 

The Undersigned proposes that should any of the following Alternates be accepted and 
incorporated into the Contract, the Base Bid will be altered in each case as follows.  (See 
"Alternates" section of the specifications for a complete description of Alternates.) 

 
 Alternate No. 1:   Add One Parallelogram Lift (S701-AA) 
 

(Add)   
 
Dollars ($   ) to/from Base Bid. 
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 Alternate No. 2:   Add Two Parallelogram Lifts (S701-AA) 
 

(Add)   
 
Dollars ($   ) to/from Base Bid. 
 
 

 Alternate No. 3:   Add Three Parallelogram Lifts (S701-AA) 
 

(Add)   
 
Dollars ($   ) to/from Base Bid. 
 
 

 Alternate No. 4:   Add Four Parallelogram Lifts (S701-AA) 
 

(Add)   
 
Dollars ($   ) to/from Base Bid. 
 
 

 Alternate No. 5:   Add Axle Lift (5650-AA) 
 

(Add)   
 
Dollars ($   ) to/from Base Bid. 
 
 
Alternate No. 6:  Delete Maintenance Building Addition 
 
(Deduct)   
 
Dollars ($   ) to/from Base Bid. 
 
  

3. TIME OF COMPLETION:  Bidder hereby agrees to commence actual physical work on 
the site with an adequate force and equipment within ten (10) days of a date to be specified in 
a written order of the Owner's (Notice to Proceed), to achieve Substantial Completion of the 
Work within two hundred eighty (280) calendar days, and to achieve Final Completion of the 
Work within forty-five (45) calendar days after the date of Substantial Completion. 

 
4. For and in consideration of the sum of $1.00, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the 

Undersigned agrees that this proposal may not be revoked or withdrawn after the time set for 
the opening of bids but will remain open for acceptance for a period of sixty (60) days 
following such time. 
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 5.  BID SECURITY: 
 

Bid security in the amount of five percent (5%) of the Base Bid is attached in the amount of  
   Dollars ($  ), which is to become the property of the Owner in the event 
the Contract and Performance Bonds are not executed within the time set forth, as liquidated damages 
for the delay and additional cost caused the Owner. 
The Undersigned agrees that upon receipt of the Notice of Acceptance of his Bid (NOTICE OF 
AWARD), he will, within ten (10) days from the Notice of Award, execute the formal Contract and 
will deliver a Surety Bond for the faithful performance of this Contract and such other bonds and 
insurance as required by the specifications. 
 
The Undersigned further agrees that if he fails or neglects to appear within the specified time to 
execute the Contract of which this Proposal, the Bidding Documents and the Contract Documents are 
a part, the Undersigned will be considered as having abandoned the Contract, and the Bidder's Bond 
accompanying this Proposal will be forfeited to the Owner by reason of such failure on the part of the 
Undersigned. 

 
6.  If awarded a contract, the Undersigned's surety will be      . 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 Signature of an Individual:    
 
 Doing Business as:    
  
 Business Address:    
 
  
 
 
 If a Partnership: 
 
 By:   Member of Firm 
 

Member of Firm 
 Business Address:    
 

  
 
 If Corporation: 
 
 By:  Title:   
 
 Business Address:    
 
 Telephone Number:    
 
 (Seal - If bid is by Corporation) 
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DATE OF BID 
 
 
 
 

8. Certificates/Attachments included in Section 004113 must show that they have been 
acknowledged (completely filled out, signed, stated “N/A”, with reasons) and submitted with 
bid.  Any forms not submitted with bid will cause bid to be non-responsive and thus not 
considered. 

 
 

END OF SECTION 00 41 13 
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                                                                    SECTION 01 21 00 
 
 ALLOWANCES 
 
PART 1 – GENERAL 
 
1.01 RELATED DOCUMENTS 
 

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary 
Conditions and other Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section. 

 
1.02 SUMMARY 
 

A. Work included:  To provide adequate budget to cover items not precisely determined by the 
Owner prior to bidding, allow within the proposed Contract Sum the amounts described 
below. 

 
1.03 ALLOWANCES 
 

A. Allow the following sum for the actual Building Department Permit fee and Water and 
Sewer fee required by the City of Marietta.  All other costs associated with obtaining 
required approvals shall be included in the Contract Sum and are not part of this allowance.  
Any balance remaining in the allowance after obtaining the above noted permits will be used 
as directed by the Owner as an Owner’s contingency. 

 
TOTAL ALLOWANCE:……………………………………………………………….$50,000.00 
 

END OF SECTION 
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